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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Montgomery and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Lindy Coe-Juell, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
DATE: September 2, 2008 
 
SUBJECT: Extension of the Operating Agreement for the Pier with the State of California 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to approve the attached 
amendment to the Pier agreement, which will extend the term of the operating agreement with the 
State for another 20 years.   
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There is no fiscal implication associated with the recommended action.  The agreement with the 
State, which owns the Pier and adjacent parking lots, provides that the City will maintain the 
premises with the meter money that we collect from the Pier parking lots.  The City keeps a 
separate parking fund for the Pier and pays for maintenance and operation of Pier property from that 
fund.  The subject amendment does not alter this basic arrangement; it simply extends the 
agreement for an additional 20 years. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On August 1, 1988, the City entered into a 20-year operating agreement for the Pier with the State 
of California.  Through this agreement, the City gained operating control of the Pier, the adjacent 
parking lots and the comfort station.  In return, the City agreed to take responsibility for all 
maintenance and care of the property by using the revenue collected from the parking meters 
located on the Pier parking lots.   
 
This agreement has worked well over the last 20 years.  The City has had the opportunity to manage 
the Pier for the enjoyment of our residents and visitors.  Over that time, the City has facilitated the 
development of an Ocean Teaching Station and café in the Roundhouse at the end of the Pier.  
These facilities are popular with residents and guests alike.  The December fireworks show is a 
good example of a City event on the Pier that is also very popular. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The original agreement with the State expired on August 1, 2008.  Per the original agreement, we 
have the option of extending the term for another 20 years by approving an extension amendment.  
In the last year, City and State Staff began discussing the details of the extension.  City Staff 
explored the possibility of the City taking ownership of the Pier.  The State said that would only be 
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possible with a fair market assessment and payment to the State.  Rather than seeking to expend 
capital funds at this time for the acquisition of the Pier, City Staff asked that the State include 
language in the amendment that would allow for terminating the Operating Agreement should the 
City pursue purchase of the Pier at a later date.  The State agreed to this option, which is included in 
the attached amendment. 
 
Staff, including the City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director, Public Works Director and Risk 
Manager, have reviewed the terms of the amendment and we recommend its approval by the City 
Council.  The amendment does not change the basic operating agreement between the City and the 
State.  It does add some additional terms.  For example, the amendment requires that we include the 
State of California as additional insured on our liability insurance for the Pier.  Both our Risk 
Manager and City Attorney agreed that this requirement, which does not have any fiscal implication 
for our insurance premium, was reasonable.  We have already requested that our insurance 
company add the State as additional insured.  
 
We have attached the original Pier agreement and the recommended amendment for your review 
and approval.   
   
ATTACHMENTS:  

A) Pier Operating Agreement Between the State and the City dated August 1, 1988 
B) Amendment No. 1  








































































































